City Council Agenda Item
Interim City Manager Staff Report
New Business

Item No: 12.A.
Date: September 17, 2015
Subject: Consider and accept 2013-14 audit

The audit was prepared by Aiello, Goodrich & Teuscher and more specifically Steve Drageset, CPA. He
will present the report and answer any questions you may have.

Recommendation: Move to accept 2013-14 audit and authorize staff to provide copies of audit
where required and requested.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the City Council
City of Dunsmuir, California

Report of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Dunsmuir, California as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which coliectively comprise the City's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal contro! refevant 10 the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibifity is to express opirions onthese financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financiat audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to cbtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment ofthe
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion, And audit aiso includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions. .

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of City of Dunsmuir, California as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the UInited States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Suppiementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America require the budgetary comparison
information on pages 28 through 29 be presented to supplement the basic financial statemenis. Such informatian,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements inan
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses {0 our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion o provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted Management’'s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for piacing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.

Ofher information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
City of Dunsmuir, California’s financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not & reguired part of the basic
financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and i aiso not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the audifing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with audifing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
are fairly stated in all material respects in refation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have alsoissued our report dated September 1, 2015 on
our consideration of City of Dunsmuir, California’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other maiters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not te provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audifing
Standards in considering the City of Dunsmuir, Celifornia’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

(Oliablo, Boodnicin 4deuschor

Alello, Goodrich & Teuscher
An Accountancy Gorporation
Mt. Shasta, California
September 1, 2015
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City of Dunsmuir

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2014

ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowances for bad
debts, where applicable}:
Trade accounts
Loans
Intergovernmental
internal balances
Other assets
Total current assets

Restricted assets:
Cash and investments

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net
Amortizable, net

Total capital assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Deposits
Current portion, compensated absences
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabiiities:
Long-term compensated absences, net of current portion
Long-term debt, net of current portion

Total liakilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted, spendable
Unrestricted

Total net position

The accompanying hotes are an integral
pari of these financial statements.

Governmental Business-ype

Activities Activities Total
$ 396,218 $ 1,731,486  § 2,127,704
- 89,814 89,814
1,158,888 - 1,168,888
125,415 263,532 388,847
58,732 (58,732) -
8,778 - 8,778
1,748,031 2,026,100 3,774,131
- 215,369 215,369
1,231,166 7,637,375 8,868,541
2,794,796 6,639,238 09,434,034
- 2,148 2,146
4,025,962 14,278,759 18,304,721
5,773,803 16,620,228 22,204 221
130,678 456,658 587,336
9,058 2,175 11,233
- 86,627 86,627
13,354 20,080 33,414
4,000 114,823 118,823
157,090 680,343 837,433
45,163 52,701 97,664
98,000 2,730,213 2,828,213
300,253 3,463,257 3,763,510
3,923,062 11,433,723 15,357,685
307,036 215,369 522,405
1,242,742 1,407,879 2,650,621
$ 5,473,740 $13,066,971 $18,530,711
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City of Dunsmuir
Balance Sheet
Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance to the Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014

Community
Development Other Tolal
General Block Grant  Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 113,531 $ - $ 282687 3 396,218
Receivables, net of allowance
Loans - 858,763 302,125 1,158,888
intergovernmental 89,574 2,762 33,079 125,415
Due from other funds 108,801 - - 108,801
Other assets 8,778 - - 8,778
Total assets $ 320,684 $ 859,625 $ 617,81 $ 1,798,100
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 115,921 $ 1,625 $ 4503 $ 122,048
Due to other funds - 45,842 4,227 50,069
Unearned revenue 9,058 - - 9,058
Other 8,629 - - 8,629
Total liabitities 133,608 47 467 8,730 189,805
Fund balances:
Nongpendable:
Noncurrent receivables - 856,763 302,125 1,158,888
Restricted for:
Streets and roads - - 24,026 24,026
Public safety - - 54,531 54,5631
Community and economic development - - 228,479 228,479
Total - - 307,036 307,038
Unassigned 187,076 {44,705) - 142,371
Total fund balance 187,076 812,058 609,161 1,608,295
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 320,684 $ 859,525 $ 617,891 $ 1,798,100
Total governmental fund balance, as above $ 1,608,205
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore not reported in the funds 4,025,962
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds (102,000}
Compensated absenses in governmental activities are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the balance sheet {68,5617)
Net position of governmental activities $ 5473,740

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.



City of Dunsmuir
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

Community
Development Other Total
General Block Grant  Governmental  Govemmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 265580 % - § - § 265880
Sales and use {axes 110,288 - - 110,288
Transient cccupancy faxes 109,567 - - 109,567
Franchise and other licenses 56,159 - - 56,159
Assessments - - 36,920 36,920
Licenses and permifs 7,028 - - 7,038
Intergovernmental revenues 257,874 7,052 163,898 418,824
Charges for services 100,504 - - 100,204
Fines, forfeitures and penallies 5413 - - 5,413
Use of money and property 97,751 11,269 8,811 117,831
Other 145,556 - - 145,556
Total revenues 1,156,130 18,321 199,628 1,374,080
EXPENDITURES
Current: '
City council 11,595 - - 11,5865
City administrator 49,288 - - 49,298
City clerk 7,069 - - 7,069
City atiorney 14,680 - - 14,690
Planning 26,554 - - 26,554
Finance and administration 82,083 - - 82,083
Building inspection 17,839 - - 17,939
Police protection 420,075 - - 420,075
Fire protection 177,049 - 2,426 179,475
Streets and roads 110,471 - 113,698 224,069
Transit assistance - - 39,085 38,085
Buildings and grounds 101,868 - - 101,868
Health and welfare 1,644 - - 1,644
Community and economic development 21,136 9,135 7,068 37,339
Bad debt expense (recovery) - - (168,155) {168,155b)
Capital outlay 23,514 - - 23,514
Debt service:
Principal - - 3,000 3,000
Interest - - 6,210 6,210
Total expenditures 1,064,985 9,135 3,232 1,077,352
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 91,145 9,186 198,397 286,728
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in - - 33,986 33,996
Operating transfers out (33,896) - - (33,996)
Total other financing sources (uses) (33,996) - 33,998 -
Excess of revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses 57,149 6,186 230,393 296,728
FUND BALANGCE
Beginning of the year 129,827 802,872 378,768 1,311,567
End of the year $ 187,076 $ 812,058 $ 808,161 $ 1,608,295
70

The accompanying notes are an irtegral
part of these financial statements,



City of Dunsmuir
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

Change in fund balance, governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reporied as depreciation expense:

Capital outlay:
Depreciation expense:

Government funds report repayment of long-term debt as an expendtiure,

but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Assets and does not affect the Statement of Activities.

Government funds do not report the change in compensated absences &s
revenue or expenditure, but it is reported in the Statement of Activities

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.

§ 206,728

23,514
(251,790)

3,000

4,679

$ 76,131
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowances for bad
debis, where applicable):
Trade accounts
Intergovernmental
Advances to other funds
Total current assets

Restricted assets;
Cash and investments

Capital agsets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net
Amortizable, net

Total capital assets, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Deposits
Due to other funds
Advances from other funds
Current portion, compensated absences
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term compensated absences,
net of current portion
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabiliies

NET POSITION
invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for debt service, spendable
Unrestricted

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral
pari of these financial statements.

City of Dunsmuir
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

Sewer Solid Waste Water Airport

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 733,363 $ 540,858 § 455794 & 1471 $ 1,731,486
56,838 24,413 8,563 - 89,814
263,532 - - - 263,532
- 49,886 - - 49,888
1,053,733 615,157 464,357 1,471 2,134,718
179,840 - 35,529 - 215,369
6,048,867 - 166,831 1,421,677 7.837,375
2,975,813 25,807 2,576,093 1,061,625 6,639,238
- - 2,146 - 2,148
5,024,680 25,807 2,745,070 2,483,202 14,278,759
10,268,253 640,964 3,244,856 2,484,673 16,628,846
408,140 44,860 1,861 1,787 456,658
2,175 - - - 2,175
- - 86,627 - 86,627
- - - 58,732 58,732
- - 48,886 - 49,886
5,827 2,707 10,350 176 20,060
98,033 - 15,790 - 114,823
518,175 47,567 164,514 60,705 788,961
22,092 17,360 11,820 1,428 52,701
2,272,523 - 457,680 - 2,730,213
2,284,615 17,360 469,510 1,429 2,782,914
2,810,790 64,927 634,024 62,134 3,571,875
6,653,124 25,807 2,271,590 2,483,202 11,433,723
179,840 - 35,529 - 215,369
614,499 550,230 303,813 {60,663) 1,407,879
$7,447 463 § 576,037  $2,610,832  §2.422,539  §13,056,971
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

REVENUES

User fees and charges
Facilities rent
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel and related expenses
Contract services
General and administrative services
Repairs and maintenance
Materials and supplies
Insurance and permits
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

OTHER REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Intergovernmental revenues
Interest earned
interest expense

Total other revenues (expenses)

Change in net position

NET POSITION

Beginning of year

End of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.

GCity of Dunsmuir

Proprietary Funds

For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

Sewer Solid Waste Water Airport

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
§ 762,447 $ 404,857 $ 501,458 $ - & 16685862
- - - 12,793 12,793
762,447 404 857 501,458 12,793 1,681,355
208,152 67,244 130,976 4,730 411,102
56,139 202,428 3,068 6,182 268,717
212,613 74,904 106,878 6,622 401,017
36,152 33,728 12,087 855 82,833
28,703 9,818 22,712 - 61,233
20,833 9,796 18,871 5137 55,537
145,093 8,452 103,228 60,410 345183
707,485 404,371 398,830 113,938 1,625,622
54,9682 286 101,628 {101,143} 585,733
3,891,472 5,000 - - 3,806,472
409 1,860 574 - 2,843
{47,570) - (24,035) - {71,608)
3,844,311 6,860 (23,461) - 3,827,710
3,899,273 7,146 78,167 {101,143) 3,883,443
3,548,190 568,891 2,632,765 2,523,682 9,173,528
$7,447.463 $ 576,037 $2,610,932 $2.422 539  $13,056,871
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City of Dunsmuir
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

Sewer Solid Waste Water Alrport
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 772649 & 410,586 $ 509,844 $ 12,8680 § 1,705,939
Payments to suppliers {62,985) (320,671) {230,137) (22,308) {636,102)
Payments to employees (128,635) (38,573) (69,691) (2,952) (239,851)
Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities 581,029 51,342 210,016 (12,401) §29,686
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt of intergovernmental revenues - 5,000 - - 5,000
Interfund advances and payments - 49,388 (49,388) 13,872 13,872
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital
financing activities - 54,388 {(49,388) 13,872 18,872
CASH FLOWS FRON CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
Receipt of intergovernmental revenues for capital 3,627,840 - - - 3,627,940
Furchase of capital assels {5,408,982) (32,259) (7,974} - (5,449,215)
Proceeds from debt 1,296,556 - -
Principal payments on debt {21,000) - (14,780) - {35,790}
interest payments on debt {47,570) - (24,035) - (71,605
Net cash (used) by investing activities {553,056} (32,258} (46,799) ~ {1,928,670)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income received 409 1,860 574 - 2,843
Net increase {decrease)
in cash 28,382 75,331 114,403 1,471 219,587
CASH
Beginning of the year 884,821 465527 376,820 - 1,727,268
End of the year $ 913,203 $ 540,858 $ 491,323 $ 1474 $ 1,946,855
Comprised of:
Cash and investments $ 733,363 $ 540,858 $ 455794 $ 1471 $ 1,731,488
Restricted cash and investments 179,840 - 35,628 - 215,369
Totai cash and cash investments $ 913,203 % 540,858 $ 401,323 $ 1,471 $ 1,946,855
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (l0ss) $ 54,062 $ 286 $ 101,628 $(101,143) §$ 55733
Adjustments to reconcile operating incorne (loss) to
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amoriization 145,083 6,452 103,228 90,410 345,183
(Increase) decrease in accounts
receivable 7,028 1,833 {1,644} - 7.317
Decrease in other assets 3,174 3,986 2,236 67 9,473
increase (decrease) in accounts
payable 379,190 43,477 781 {1,098) 422,350
Decrease in compensated absences (8,418) (4,802) (4,007} (637) {17,864)
increase in deposits - - 7.794 - 7,794
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities $ 581,029 $ 51,342 $ 210,016 $ (12,401) § 828,988

The accompanying notes are an integral

part of these financial statements.
10
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City of Dunsmuir
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2014

Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 19
LIABILITIES
Agency obligations $ 19

The accompanying notes are an integral

parl of these financial statements,
11



City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1_SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A, Reporting Entity

The City of Dunsmuir, California (hereafter "the Gity") operates under & City Councii ~ City Manager form of
government and provides the following services: pubfic safety, streets and roads, water and sewer, culture
and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America as applicable to governmental entities. The following is & summary of the more significant polices.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for
state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). The more
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

The financial statements of the City include all of the financial activities of the City. In evaluating how to
define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential compenent units,
The decision to include a potential component unitin the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set
forth in GAAP. The basic - but not the only - criterion for including a potential component unit within the
reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant
manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise
oversight responsibility incfude, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of
management, the ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The other
criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the
existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to exercise oversight
responsibilities. Based upon the application of these criteria, the City does not have any component units.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The statement of net position and statement of activities include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
City. Governmental activities are reported separately from business-type activities (such as sewer, solid
waste, water, and airport).

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
different identifiable activity of the City's business-type activities and for each function of the City's
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function
and therefore are clearly identifiable to a particuiar function. Program revenues include charges paid by
recipients of goods and services offered by the program, and grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues are presented instead as general revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are avaitable, restricted resources are depleted first before
the unrestricted resources are used.
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 _SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the City are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a separate
accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-halancing accounts that
constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into
three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds
within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is cansidered major if it is the primary operating

fund of the City or meets the following criteria:

Total assets, liabiiities, revenues or expenditure/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise
fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category type; and

Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses for the individual governmental or enterprise
fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmentel and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the City are described below:

Major Governmental Funds:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. 1t is used to account for all financial resources
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund accounts for the financing of home rehabilitation, as
financed by monies passed through the State by the federal government,

Major Proprietary Funds:

The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner simitar
to a private business enterprise where the intent of the governing body is that the costs {expenses) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges, or where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public poiicy,
management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The Sewer Fund was established to account for the operations of the City's sewer utility, a self-supporting
activity which renders a service on a user charge basis to residents and businesses within the City.

The Solid Waste Fund was established to account refuse collection, & self-supporting activity which renders a
service on a user charge basis to residents and businesses within the City.

The Water Fund was established to account for the operations of the City's water utifity, a self-supporting
activity which renders a service on a user charge basis to residents and businesses within the City.

The Airport Fund was established to account for the operations of Mott Field.
Additionally, the City reports the following governmental funds:
Local Transportation Fund: Established to account for the construction and maintenance of the streets and

roads of the City, as well as to provide mass transit, as financed from “Transportation Development Act'
monies passed through the County of Siskiyou by the State.
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 _SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Gas Tax Funds (2108, 2107, 2107.5, 2107SR): Established to account for the construction and maintenance
of the streets and roads of the City as financed by gas taxes received from the State.

Fire Assessment Fund: Established to account for fire suppression activities, as financed by fire suppression
fees levied on property owners.

Economic Development Block Grant (EDBG) Fund accounts for the financing of businesses, as financed by
monies passed through the State by the federal government,

EDBG Revolving Loan Fund: Established to account for revolving loans and the monies associated with those
loans.

CDBG Revolving Loan Fund: Established to account for revolving loans and the monies associated with those
loans.

South Dunsmuir Sewer Assessment Fund: Established to account for assessments levied against certain
property owners for the purpose of payment of long-term bonds issued for improvements of the sewer

system.
The City reports the following Fiduciary Fund:

Siskiyou Regional Development Association Agency Fund: used to account for funds collected from other
cities and used by the Association for meetings and economic development activities.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurernent focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when” transactions are recorded regardiess of the measurement

focus applied.

Measurement Focus:

In the government-wide statements, both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the
economic resources measurement focus as defined below.

In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus or the economic
resources measurement focus is used as appropriate.

All governmentai funds utilize a current financial resources measurement focus. Only current financial assets
and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present resources
and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as
their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the year.

All proprietary (enterprise) funds utilize an economic resources measurement focus. The accounting
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or
cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent)
associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as a net asset.

Fiduciary (agency) funds are not involved in the measurement of resuits of operations; therefore,
measurement focus in not applicable to them.
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Accounting:

in the government-wide statements, both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recorded when the fiability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses,
gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized

when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental and agency funds are presented onthe modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available
means collectible within the current period or within 80 days after year end. Expenditures (including capital
outlays) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.

All proprietary funds utllize the accruat basis of accounting, as described above.
D. Asseis, Liabilities, Net Position or Fund Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers as cash equivalents all highly liquid
investments with a maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less.

Investments:

The City participates in the California Local Agency investment Fund ("LAIF"). LAIF is an external investment
pool through which local governments may pool investments. Investments in LAIF are highly liquid, as
deposits can be converted to cash within 24 hours without the loss of interest. The fair value of the City's
portion of LAIF is the same as its value of the pool shares. The regulatory oversight of LAIF rests with the

Local Agency Investment Board.

Receivables:

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds are the same as those in the
government-wide statements, since they are both measurable and available. Interestearnings are recorded
when eamed only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both measurabie and available.
Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all revenues eamned at year-end but not yet received.
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based on historical trends, periodic aging of accounts
receivable, and management's detailed analysis of the composition of accounts receivable.

Property Taxes:

The County of Siskiyou assesses, bills, and collects property taxes for the City. Assessed values are
determined annually by the Siskiyou County Assessor as of January 1, and become a lien on such property
January 1. Taxes are due November 1 and February 1 (secured), and July 1 (unsecured) and are delinquent
if not paid by December 10 and April 10 (secured), and August 31 (unsecured). The County is permitted by
the State Constitution (Article X111 A) to fevy taxes at 1% of the full market value of the property (at the time of
purchase) and can increase a property’s assessed vatuation by reappraisal due to new construction, change
in ownership, or by increase in fair market value not to exceed a 2% each year. Property taxes collected by
the County on behalf of the City but not remitted to the City by June 30 are accrued in revenue and included

in other accounts receivable.
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes 1o the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 _SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inierfund Receivables and Payables:

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may resuit in
amounts owed between funds. These may include amounts relating to goods and services type transactions,
and interfund loans.

Restricted Assets:

Ceriain resources set aside for the repayment of the City’s sewer and water funds long-term debt are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts
and their use is limited by applicable debt covenants.

Capitai Assets:

The accounting treatment for property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (capital assets) depends on
whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they
are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

In the government-wide financial statements, property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets with @ cost,
as defined below, of $1,000 or more are accounted for as capital assets. All capital assets are valued at
nistorical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available, except dongted capital
assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Depreciation of all
exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, with
accumulated depreciation refiected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided over the
assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful
lives by type of asset is as follows:

Utility plant 40 vears
Buildings 20 10 40 years
Improvements not buildings 10 to 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5t0 40 years
Infrastructure 40 years

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund
operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.

Donated Assets:
Donated assets are recorded at fair market value at the time of donation.

Compensated Absences:

Vacation pay, sick leave, and compensated time off is vested to the employees as it accrues and is payable
upon separation of service and therefore, have been accrued in the accompanying financial statements.

Unearned Revenue:

Unearned revenue represents monies received that has not yet been expended by the City and is notearned
(as revenue} until it is properly expended.
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Fund Balance Classification:

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a
hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound fo honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in
the governmental fund financial staternents are as follows:

® Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either {a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required t0 be maintained intact.

«  Resticted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed onthe
use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through & debt covenant),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The City has classified police, fire, streets and roads,
public transportation, community development and parks and fund balances as restricted for fund
purposes. Monies setaside for noncurrent receivables and capital improvements are also classified
as a restricted fund balance.

¢ Cormmitied: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These amounts cannot be used
for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the
same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially
committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing
resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. The
City did not have any committed resources as of June 30, 2014.

o  Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by
the City Council or through the City Council delegating this responsibility to the City manager through
the budgetary process. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all
governmental funds except for the General Fund. The City did not have any assigned resources as

of June 30, 2014.

® Unassigned; This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund, The
Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other governmental
fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance amounis.

The City would typically use Restricted sund balances first, followed by Commitied resources, and then
Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend
Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.

E. Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods andfor services. 1t also includes all revenues and expenses not related fo
capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities.
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

Expenditures/Expenses:

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and
business-type activities.

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified by character (current, debt service or capital
outlay) for governmental funds, and by operating or nonoperating classifications for proprietary funds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary
funds report expenses refating to use of economic resources.

F. Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

G. Budgets

The City adopts an annual budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1, Budgets are adopted
on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The level of contral, the level at which
expenditures may not exceed budget, is the fund. Unused appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year.

The City does not use encumbrance accounting.

NOTE 2_CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City follows the practice of pooling cash of all funds, unless the funds are required by law, debt covenant
or other instrument to be held in a separate account. Interest income on pooled cash invested is allocated
monthiy to the various funds based on the same proportion that such funds bear to the total monies invested.

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2014 are classified in the accompanying financial stafements as follows:

Statement of net position:

Current cash and investments $ 2,127,704
Restricted cash and investments 215,369
Statement of fidugiary net position 19

Total cash and investments $ 2,343,092

Consisting of the following:

Cash on hand 3 350
Deposits with financial institutions 1,418,093
Investments in LAIF 024,649

$ 2,343,092

investments Authorized:

The City manages its pooled idle cash investments under the guidetines of the State of California Government
Code Section 53601 which specifically authorizes investments in the following instruments: treasury bills,
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 _CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

freasury notes, federal agency securities, bankers' acceptances, nonnegotiable certificates of deposit,
commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and repurchase agreements. Allinvestments activities
are conducted with financial institutions approved by the City Councit.

Disclosure Relating to Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the rigk that changes in market rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value in market
interest rates. As of year end, the weighted average maturity, as well as the estimated fair vaiue of each
investment, are shown in the table below.

Cost Fair Value Maturity Date

Local Agency Investment Fund 3 924,649 $ 024,649 232 day average

Disclosure Relating to Credit Risk:

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer if an investment wilt not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. LAIF does not have such a rating.

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The investment policy of the City contains no limitation on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
peyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no investments in any one issuer that
represent 5 percent or more of total City investments. There are no investments in any one issuer that
represent 5 percent or more of total investments by reporting unit.

Custodial Credit Risk:

Custodial credit risk of deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover ifs deposits or will not be able to recover collatera} securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not
contain legal or palicy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other
than the following provisions for deposits; The California Government Code requires that a financial
institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided
collateral poo! held by & depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).
The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal 110 percent of the fotal amount
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 160 percent of the secured public deposits.

The City's balance in banks was $1,177,864, all of which was covered by federal depository insurance, or the
collateral requirements discussed in the preceding paragraph. The bank balance differs from the book
balance of $1,148,093 because of deposits in transit and outstanding checks.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (€.9.,
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City's
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit
risk for investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generaily applies only to direct
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect
investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

Investment in State Investment Pool (LAIF);

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of
the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon
the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolic (in relation to the
amortized cost of that portfolic). The balance available for withdrawal is based on accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amertized cost basis.

NOTE 3 LOANS RECEIVABLE

The following is the composition of loans receivable at June 30, 2014:

EDBG CDBG
Revolving Revolving
CDBG Fund EDBG Fund  Loan Funds  Loan Funds Total
Mortgage loans $ 938,222 $ 246,263 $ 108,279 $ 57,991 $ 1,348,755
Less: allowance for bad debt (76,458) (69,087) - (41,311) (189,867)
Total $ 856,763 $ 177,166 $ 108,279 $ 16,880 $ 1,158,888
Related party loans $ - $ - $ 170,721 $ - $ 170,721

NOTE4 DUE TO / DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS, ADVANCES TO / FROM OTHER FUNDS, AND
OPERATING TRANSFERS INfOUT

The following is & summary of the interfund receivables and payabies at June 30, 2014:

Due to:

Due from: Generat Fund
Community Development

Block Grant Fund $ 45,842
Lecat Transportation Fund 949
Gas Tax Fund 3,278
Alrport Fund 58,732
Total $ 108,801

The above amounts are to caver negative cash balances in the respective funds’ pooled cash accounts, and
will be repaid by transferring monies from other cash accounts or from future revenues.

The Solid Waste Fund made an advance to the Water fund for the purpose of paying off the COPS Water
Loan. The Water fund is scheduled to repay the advance over three years at 1% interest. The balance due
to the Solid Waste fund from the Water fund af June 30, 2014 was $49,886.
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes o the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE4 DUE TO / DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS, ADVANCES TO / FROM OTHER FUNDS, AND

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN/QUT (Continued)

The following is a summary of operating transfers infout:

Transfer in to:

Transfer
out from;

General Fund

Gas Tax Fund

The operating transfer to the Gas Tax Fund is for overhead activities in the General Fund.

NOTE S5 CAPITAL ASSETS

33,006

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Constructicn in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated:

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Machinery and eguipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastruciure

Total accumulated depreciation

Totat capital assets being depreciated, net

Subtotal, governmentat activities

June 30, Additions Retiremenis June 3G,
2013 and Transfers  and Transfers 2014

$ 1,151,800 - - $ 1,151,800
58,855 19,511 - 79,366
1,211,655 19,511 - 1,231,166
1,739,864 - - 1,739,864
1,890,136 4,003 - 1,894,139
2,901,010 - - 2,901,010
6,631,010 4,003 - 6,635,013
1,360,687 20,730 - 1,381,447
912,152 86,366 - 998,518
1,315,588 144,694 - 1,460,282
3,688,427 251,790 - 3,840,217
3,042,683 {247,787) - 2,794,796
4,254,238 (228,276) - 4,025,962
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Business-type aclivities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Utility ptant
Buildings
Improvements net buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capitat assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Utility plant
Buildings
Improvements not buildings
Machinery and equipment

Totat accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Capital assets being amortized:
Organization costs
Less: accumlated amortization
Total capital assets being amortized, net

Subtotal, business-type activities

Total, government-wide

City of Dunsmuir

June 30, Additions Retirements June 30,
2013 and Transfers  and Transfers 2014

1,718,508 - - 1,718,508
523,258 5,395 608 - 5,018,867
2,241,766 5,395,609 - 7,637,375
7,821,627 - - 7,821,527
240,861 - - 240,861
2,896,158 - - 2,896,158
1,103,108 53,606 - 1,156,714
12,061,654 53,606 - 12,115,260
2,743,334 197,606 - 2,940,840
103,660 10,120 - 113,680
1,500,590 67,267 - 1,606,857
780,008 34,447 - 814,545
5,136,682 339,440 - 5,476,022
6,925,072 (285,834) - 6,639,238
109,530 - - 109,530
101,641 5,743 - 107,384
7,888 {5,743} - 2,146
9,174,727 5,104,032 - 14,278,759
$ 13,428,965 $ 4,875,756 $ - $ 18,304,721

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Sireets and roads

Total depreciation and amortization expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Sewer
Solid Waste
Water
Airpori

Total depreciation and amortization expense - business-type activities
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$ 26,315
79,189
146,286

$ 251,790

e e )

$ 145,083
6,452
103,228
90,410

$ 345183
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Gity of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financlal Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE & LONG TERM DEET

The following is a summary of Governmental activities long-term liabilities activity during the year ended June
30, 2014:

Current
June 30, 2013 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2014 Portion

Bonds and notes payable:
So. Dunsmuir Sewer Agsessment system 105,000 - 3,000 102,000 4,000

Total governmental activities long-term debt ~ § 105,000 _ $ - % 3000 $ 102000 % 4,000

Payments on the bonds and notes payable that pertain to the City's governmental activities are made by
South Dunsmuir Sewer Assessment District Fund.

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for Governmental bonds and notes payable for future
years is as follows:

So. Dunsmuir Sewer

Assessment
Interest rate 8.00%
date September 2, 2030
Year Ended
June 30, Principal interest
2015 4,000 6,120
2016 4,000 5,880
2017 4,000 5,640
2018 4,000 5,400
2018 5,000 5,160
2020-2024 27,000 21,240
2025-2029 37,000 11,940
2030-2031 47,000 1,500

§ 102000 _$ 62,880

The following is a summary of Business-type activities long-term liabilities activity during the year ended June

30, 2014:
Current

June 30, 2013 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2014 Fortion

Ronds and notes payable:
1994 Sewer improvement Certificates of

Participation $ 356,000 $ - $ 11,000 $ 385,000 $ 11,000
2007 USDA Sewer Loan 700,000 - 10,000 690,000 11,000
State Water Resources Control Board - 1,296,656 - 1,296,556 77,033

Total sewer fund 1,098,000 1,296,656 21,000 2,371,556 98,033
1994 Water Improvement Certificates of

Participation 452,000 - 12,000 440,000 13,000

2005 Water System Loan 36,270 - 2,790 33,480 2,790
Total water fund 488,270 - 14,780 473,480 15,790
Total Business-type activities long term debt ~ § 1,584,270  §1 206556 $ 35790 8 2,845,036 § 114,823
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 6 LONG TERM DEBT {continued)
Payments on the bonds and notes payable that pertain to the City's business-type activities are made by the

Water and Sewer Funds.

Debt service requirements for principai and interest for Business-type activities bonds and notes payable for
future years is as follows:

1994 Sewer Cerlificates of 2007 USDA Sewer State Water Resources

Participation Loan Control Board
Interest rate 4.50% 4.25% 1.80%
Maturity May 1, 2035 May 1, 2046 August 31, 2034
Year Ended
June 30,. Principal Interest Principal interest Principat Interest
2015 11,000 17,325 11,000 26,825 77,033 27,726
2016 12,000 16,830 11,000 28,857 74,642 30,117
2017 12,000 15,750 11,000 28,590 75,985 28,773
2018 13,000 16,280 12,000 27,923 77,353 27,406
2019 14,000 15,165 12,000 27,413 408,159 115,634
2020-2024 78,000 65,970 71,000 128,690 446,239 77,554
2025-2029 97,000 46,710 87,000 112,827 487,873 35,920
2030-2034 120,000 22,850 107,000 92,140 102,906 1,852
2035-2038 28,000 631 131,000 67,596 . -
2040-2044 - - 162,000 37,145 - -
2045-2049 - - 75,000 4,603 - -
Total $ 385000 § 217,621 690,000 _$584,609  $1,750160 $ 344,982
1994 Water Improvement 2005 Water System
Ceriificates of Loan
Interest rate 513% NIA
Maturity May 1, 2038 July, 12026 Total
Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 13,000 22,499 2,790 - 114,823 96,875
2016 13,060 21,833 2,790 - 113,432 97,637
2017 14,600 21,166 2,790 - 118,775 94,078
2018 45,000 20,448 2,790 - 120,143 82,068
2019 16,000 19,680 2,790 452,949 177,892
2020-2024 60,000 85,5688 13,950 - 699,189 357,802
2025-2029 116,000 59,963 5,580 - 793,453 254,920
2030-2034 148,000 27,009 - - 478,808 143,951
2035-2038 14,000 666 - - 173,000 68,883
2040-2044 - - - “ 162,000 37,145
2045-2049 - - - - 75,000 4,803
Totat $ 440,000 $ 278853 $ 33480 8 - $ 3,298,670 $ 1,426,065

The total principal amount shown above for the State Water Resources Control Board loan is higher than the
outstanding balance at June 30, 2014. The remaining amount of the loan proceeds were received
subsequent to year end, and the debt service requirements reflect the total loan.
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE 7 COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absence activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 is summarized as foliows:

June 30, June 30, Current
2013 Additions Reductions 2014 Portion
Governmental activities:
General fund $ 63,196 $ - $ 4,679 $ 58517 $ 13354
Business-type activities:
Sewer fund 37,337 - 8,418 28,919 6,827
Solid Waste fund 24,866 - 4,802 20,067 2,707
Water fund 26,177 - 4,007 22,170 10,350
Airporl fund 2,242 - 837 1,605 176
Total business-type activities 90,625 - 17,8064 72,761 20,060
Totat compensated absences % 153,821 $ - $ 22,543 $ 131,278 $ 33414

NOTE 8_PENSION PLAN

Plan Description — The City's defined benefit pension plan, City of Dunsmuir Pension Plan (“the Plan")
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. The Plan is part of the Pubic Agency portion of the California Public Retirement
System (CalPERS), an agent multiple-employer pian administered by CalPERS, which acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for participating public employers within the State of California. Amenu
of benefit provisions as well as other requirements are established by State Statutes within the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law. The City selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract
with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through local resolutions. CalPERS issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from
the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California 93814.

Funding Policy — Active plan members of the Plan are required to contribute 7.00% of their annual covered
salary. The City has elected to pay a pottion of the employees’ contribution. The City is required to
contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The
required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2014 was 9.691%. The contribution
requirements of the plan members are established by State statute and the employer contribution rate is
established and may be amended by CalPERS.

Annuat Pension Cost— For the year ended June 30, 2014 the City’s annual pension costwas $ 42,668, which
is also the amount the City contributed. The required contribution for the year ended June 30, 2014 was
determined as part of the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method
with the contributions determined as a percentage of pay. The actuarial assumptions included {a) 7.50%
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses); (b) projected salary increases that vary by age,
service, and type of employment ranging from 3.30% to 14.20%, and: (c) 3.00% cost-of-living adjustment.
Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component of 2.75%. The actuarial value of the Plan's assets was
determined using a technique that smoothes the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a three year period. The Plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or excess assets) is
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization
period at June 30, 2014 was 7 years. The City's employees also paid contributions, which totaled $28,728 for
the year ended June 30, 2014,
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City of Dunsruir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

Three Year Trend {nformation:

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012
Annuzl Pension Cost (APC) $ 42868 44806 % 38,397
Percentage APC contributed 100% 100% 100%
Net Pension Obligation 3 - $ - 3 -

During the year ended June 30, 2003, CalPERS grouped all small employers {defined as those with less
than 160 members in the Plan) into a risk pool. Therefore, information for the years ended June 30,
2013, 2012 and 2011 (the latest available) are for the pool as a whole.

June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010

Actuarial value of assels (AVA) $ 3,686,508,343 $ 3,203,214,899 $ 2,946,408,108
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)  $ 4,175,139,166  $ 3,619,835876  $ 3,309,064,934
Unfunded AAL (LUAAL) $ 488,540,823 $ 416,620,977 § 362,656,528
Funded Ratio (AVA/AAL) 88.3% 88.5% 89.0%

NOTES SELF-INSURANCE

The City is a member of the Small Cities Organized Risk Effort (SCORE), a general liability shared risk pooi.
The City is responsible to pay the first $25,000 of each claim, but has coverage through the pool of up to
$45,000,000 per claim.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTED NET POSITION

Restricted net position is equity whose use is subject to constraints that are either; (1) externally imposed by
creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, or laws or regulations of governments, or (2) imposed hy law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted net position at June 30, 2014 for
governmental activities were restricted for the specific fund purpose and business-type activities were
restricted for debt service.

NOTE 11 _FUND BALANCE

Fund balances are classified as foliows:

Nonspendable—Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in & spendable form or
because they are legally or contractually required fo be maintained intact.

Restricted—Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the City Charter, City
Code, state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors,

Committed-—Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formaf action by
City Council ordinance or resoiution. This includes the budget reserve account.

Assigned—Amounts that are designated by the Mayor for a specific purpose but are not spendable
until a budget ordinance is passed by City Council,
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City of Dunsmuir
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

Unassigned—All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

As discussed in Note 1, restricted funds are used first as appropriate. Assigned Funds are reduced to the
extent that expenditure authority has been budgeted by Council or the Assignment has been changed by the
Mayor. Decreases to fund balance first reduce Unassigned Fund balance; in the event that Unassigned Fund
Balance becomes zero, then Assigned and Committed Fund Balances are used in that order.

General Fund

The General Fund has Unassigned Fund Balance of $187,076 at June 30, 2014,

Other Major Fund

The Community Development Block Grant Fund has Non-spendable Fund Balance of $856,763 consisting of
noncurrent receivables and an Unassigned Fund Balance {Deficit) of §(44,705) at June 30, 2014.

Other Funds

Other governmental (nonmajor) funds have Non-spendable Fund Balance of $302,125, consisting of
noncurrent receivables, Restricted Fund Balance of $307,036 restricted for fund purpose and Unassigned
Fund Balance of $142,371 at June 30, 2014.

NOTE 12 _CONTINGENCIES

The City participates in several Federal and State assisted grant programs that are subject to audit by the
grantors. Although the ultimate outcome of such audits cannot be determined at this time, the City believes

that such audits will not have a material adverse effect on the City.

The City is also a party to several legal actions. Should the outcome be unfavorable to the City, it does not
expect the financial effects will be material to the financial position of the City.

NOTE 13 OVEREXPENDITURE OF BUDGET

The Community Development Block Grant Fund overexpended its budget by $8,081.
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City of Punsmuir

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES
Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Transient occupancy taxes
Franchise and other licenses
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Use of money and property
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
City council
City administrator
City clerk
City attorney
Planning
Finance and administration
Buiiding inspection
Police protection
Fire protection
Streets and roads
Buildings and grounds
Health and welare
Community and economic development
Capital outlay
Total expendituras

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses

The accompanying notes are an integral
nan of these financial statements.

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Qriginal Final Actual Variance With
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
$ 250,700 $ 250,000 $ 265,580 $ 15,680
103,500 83,500 110,288 26,788
125,000 85,000 109,567 24,567
57,750 57,810 56,159 (1,65%)
18,500 9,000 7,038 (1,962)
381,250 250,158 257,874 7,716
81,725 104,700 100,804 (3,796)
5,275 5,400 5,413 13
95,305 97,825 97,751 (74)
356,400 397 556 145,556 {252,000)
1,455,405 1,340,949 1,166,130 (184,819)
38,250 24,8607 11,595 13,012
142,227 111,515 48,288 62,217
7,404 7,086 7,068 17
56,200 46,200 14,680 31,510
19,702 30,432 26,5564 3,878
176,269 183,631 82,083 101,548
23,250 19,050 17,938 2,011
424,642 407,372 420,075 (12,703)
158,371 167,048 177,049 (10,001)
146,800 120,330 110,471 9,859
219,822 107,448 101,868 5,578
2,500 2,500 1,644 856
21,700 19,925 24,136 (1,241)
- - 23,614 (23,514)
1,407,137 1,248,042 1,064,985 183,067
48,268 92,907 91,145 (1,762)
(33,996) (33,996) {33,996) -
(33,996) (33,996) (33,896) .
$ 14,272 $ 58,911 $ 57,149 3 (1,762)
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City of Dunsmuir
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Community Development Block Grant
For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

Favorable
(Unfavorabie)
Original Final Aciual Variance With
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental 5 - $ 7,062 $ 7,052
Use of money and property 1,080 1,060 11,269 10,208
Total revenues 1,060 1,060 18,321 17.261
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Community and economic development 136 154 9,135 (8,881)
Total expenditures 136 154 " 8,135 (8,981)
Excess of revenues (under) expenditures 924 806 9,186 8,280
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Operating transfers out - - - -
Excess of revenues (under) expenditures and other u_% 924 $ 906 $ 9,186 $ 8,280
94

The accompanying notes are an integral
nart of these financial statements.
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City of Dunsmuir
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For The Year Ended June 30, 2014

toan
Pass Disbursemenis
Federa Through Federal Included In
Program Title CFDA# Grantor # Expendiiures Expenditures

Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through California Department of Housing
and Community Development
Community Development Block Grant/State's program 14.228 09-STBG-6403 $ 7,052 -

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development Programs 7,062 -

Envirenmental Protection Agency
Passed through California State Water Resources
Control Board
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving
Loan Fund 66.458 11-840-550 3,357,500 -

Total Fnvironmental Protection Agency

3,357,600 -

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards $3,364,552 $

Notes:

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is the same
basis used in preparing the basic financial statements.

City of Dunsmuir, California expended no federal non-cash assistance during the year, had no federal insurance in efiect during
the year, and had no outstanding federal loan guarantees during the year.

The accompanying notes are an integral
nart of these financial statemenis.
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< An Accourstaniey Corporadon

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Dunsmuir, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the united States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Dunsmuir as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City of Dunsmuir's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 1, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Dunsmuir's internal control
over financia! reporting (internal controf) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Dunsmuir's interna! control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Dunsmuir's internat control.

Our consideration of internal controi was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses ang significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in infernal controf exists when the design or operation of & control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, fo prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weaknessis a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial staternents
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yetimportant enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2014-001 to be material weaknesses,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Dunsmuir, California’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government

Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal controt and compliance and the
resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of that entity’s internal contral or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compiiance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitabie for any other purpose.
O,LQUD, Bﬁom;mm 1 Jorisehin

Aiello, Goodrich & Teuscher
An Accountancy Corporation
Mi. Shasta, California
September 1, 2015
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Ari Accowntanoey Corporation

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the City Council
City of Dunsmuir, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Dunsmuir's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that couid have a direct and material effect on each of City of Dunsmuir's
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. City of Dunsmuir's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned

costs,
Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to each of its major federat programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Dunsmuir's major federal programs
pased on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on @ major federal program occurred. An auditincludes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about City of Dunsmuir's compliance with those requirements and performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal
determination of City of Dunsmuir's compliance with those requirements.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Dunsmuir complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year

ended June 30, 2014,

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are reguired to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circutar A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2014-001 and 2014-002. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified

with respect to these matters.
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City of Dunsmuir's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Dunsmuir's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Dunsmuir is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered City of Dunsmuir's internal conirol over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 10 determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Dunsmuir's internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed fo identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
materizl weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of & control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncornpliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and

corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2014-001 to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or & combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2014-002 to be a significant deficiency.

City of Dunsmuir's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our auditis described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Dunsmuir's response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the

response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-

133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Aiello, Goodrich & Teuscher
An Accountancy Corporation
Mt. Shasta, CA

September 1, 2015
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City of Dunsmuir
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Summary of Auditors’ Resulis

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the City of Dunsmuir,
California.

2. One material weakness (ltem 2014-001) relating to the audit of the financial statements is reported inthe
Independent Auditors’ Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance And
Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government

Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Dunsmuir, California
were disclosed during the audit.

4. One material weakness (Item 2014-001) and one significant deficiency (Item 2014-002) relating to the
audit of the major federal awards programs are reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report On
Compliance For Each Major Program And On Infernal Control Over Compliance Required By OMB

Circular A-133.

5. The Independent Auditors’ Report on compliance for the major federal award programs expresses an
unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133
are reported in this schedule,

7. The program tested as a major program was CFDA #66.458 — Capitalization Grants for Clean Water
State Revolving L.oan Fund.

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $300,000.

8. The City of Dunsmuir, California did not qualify as & fow-risk auditee.

Findings - Financial Statement Audit

2014-001 Material Errors in the Financial Statements

Condition: Material audit adjustments were proposed. The items consisted of adjustments to properly record
revenues, and expenses, capitalize capital asset purchases, record a receivable and revenue related fo the major

federal award program, and record the loan related to a grant program.

Criteria; The City must present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Cause: The City was without qualified accounting staff or 2 finance officer for an extended pericd subsequent to
year end, when normally these items would have been adjusted.

Effect: Material errors existed in the City’s financial statements.

eir functions

Recommendation: The City must employ competent accounting staff at all times, and ensure that th
are being properly performed.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: Lack of suppbrt staff during the period subseguent
to June 30, 2014 was allowed by prior City Council. A new Council is in place, and they have approved budgets
that include a full ime interim City Manager and a full time Finance Director. Since February 2015, a full time
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City of Punsmuir
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Interim City Manager has been employed, and since March 2015 & 60% contract finance position has been
utilized. Recruitments to fill both full time budget positions are to be soon underway.

Findinas and Questioned Costs-Major Federal Award Programs Audit

Environmental Protection Agency
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Loan Fund

CFDA No. 66.458
2014.001 Material Errors in the Financial Statements

Thig finding, listed above under financial statement audit findings, applies to this major federal award program.
2014-002 Late Submission of Data Collection Form and Reporting Package

Condition: The Data Collection Form and Reporting Package were not submitted within nine months of the end of
the audit period.

Criteria: The Data Collection Form and Reporting Package are required to be submitted within 30 days of the
issuance of the audit, but in no case shall it be later than 9 months from the end of the audit period.

Cause: The City was not able to be audited untii the summer of 2015 due fo staff turnover and the need to
complete the accounting records for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Effect. The City may lose its ability to be eligible for further federal financial assistance. In addition, if there were
any errors, fraud, abuse or question costs, they would not have been detected in a timely manner.

Questioned Costs: None,

Recomimendation. The City must employee appropriate accounting staff at all times to maintain current records,

and it must be audited within the required time frame.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: Lack of support staff during the period subsequent
to June 30, 2014 was aflowed by prior City Council. A new Coungil is in place, and they have approved budgets
that include a full time interim City Manager and a full ime Finance Director. Since February 2015, a full time
Interim City Manager has heen employed, and since March 2015 a 60% contract finance position has been

utilized. Recruitments to fill both full time budget positions are to be soon underway.

" Summary of Prior Audit Findings

None
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City Council Agenda ltem
Interim City Manager Staff Report
New Business

ltem No: 12.8B.

Date: September 17, 2015

Subject: Consider and authorize Interim City Manager to execute Statement of Work and
Agreement with Central Federal Lands to begin feasibility studies for Butterfly Bridge
improvements

Sometime ago the City received a SCOUR grant to study the bridge at Butterfly Avenue. During the
initiation of work using those grant monies it was determined that a much targer than anticipated
project would be needed. Caltrans representatives have worked with staff to engage a federal agency
that is replacing 5 bridges in Trinity County. Central Federal Lands normally does engineering work and
project management on federal lands. At this time they are also available to work on federaily funded

projects.

An application for $100,000 in federal grant monies has been approved with $85,000 availahle for work
as proposed in the Statement of Work by Central Federal Lands and the remainder for grant
management work by Caltrans and City.

Recommendation: Move to authorize Interim City Manager to execute Statement of Work and
Agreement with Central Federal Lands to begin feasibility studies for Butterfly Bride improvements.
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Federal Highway Administration
Federal Lands Highway
AGREEMENT

DTFH68-16-E-00002

| PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT

Reimbursing Organization

Organization to be Reimbursed

City of Dunsmuir, California
5915 Dunsmuir Avenue
Dunsmuir, CA 96025

Federal Highway Administration
Central Federal Lands Highway Division
12300 West Dakota Ave

Lakewood, CO 80228

Address: 5915 Dunsmuir Avenue
Dunsmuir, CA 96025
530-235-4822 x 103
citymanager@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us

Phone:
E-mail:

TIN: DUNS Number
DUNS: 126129936
[ POINTS OF CONTACT FOR THE AGREEMENT
Reimbursing Organization Organization to be Reimbursed
Finance Point of Contact Finance Point of Contact
Name: Pam Russell Name: Suzanne Schmidt
Address: 5215 Dunsmuir Avenue Address: 12300 West Dakota Ave
Dunsmuir, CA 96025 Lakewood, CO 802
Phone:  530-235-4822 Phone:  720-963-3356
E-mail:  cfo@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us E-mail: suzanne.schmidt@dot.gov
Reimbursing Organization Organization to be Reimbursed
Program Point of Contact Program Point of Contact
Name: Randy L. Johnsen Name:  James Herlyck

Address: 12300 West Dakota Ave
Lakewood, CO 80228
720-963-3698
james.herlyck@dot.gov

Phone:
E-mail:

PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE
From: See date of signature below
To: September 30, 2016

LEGAL AUTHORITY
23 U.8.C. 308

TOTAL AGREEMENT AMOUNT

TOTAL AGREEMENT AMOUNT: $85,000.00

PAYMENT TERMS AND SCHEDULE

EFT

DESCRIPTION OF SUPPLIES, SERVICES, AND DELIVERABLES

See the attached Statement of Work

AUTHORIZED APPROVALS

For Reimbursing Organization

Signature Date September 18, 2015
Randy L. Johnsen

Titte Interim Cily Manager

For Organization to be Reimbursed

Signature Date
Ricardo Suarez

Title Division Engineer

LR}

Revised 3/2010
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IV.

Statement of Work
for Agreement
DTFH68-16-E-00002
September 1, 2015

Introduction: In January 20135, the Caltrans District 2 Local Assistance Office and the City
of Dunsmuir, California (“the City”) requested the Federal Highway Administration, Central
Federal Lands Highway Division (“CFLHD") to visit the Butterfly Bridge (Inventory No.
02C-0076) located in within the City limits.

CFLHD, Caltrans, and the City met on February 2, 2015 to view the bridge. At this meeting,
Caltrans and the City requested technical assistance from CFLHD to evaluate scour and
prepare recommendations. On February 26, 2015 CFLHD proposed a two-phased approach.
Phase 1 would be to investigate the bridge site in greater detail and provide
recommendations for improvements to the existing structure or if necessary, replacement.
Phase 2 would be for the implementation of the recommendations. In July 2015, Caltrans

provided funding to the City for Phase 1.

This agreement is for the City to provide funding to CFLHD for Phase 1: the
investigation and preparation of recommendations of improvements to the Butterfly
Bridge. The City shall be referred to as the Requesting Agency and the CFLHD
shall be referred to as the Servicing Agency.

Location; City of Dunsmuir, California
Work Required: CFLHD will perform a topographic survey of the site, analyze the

hydraulics, perform a geotechnical investigation, and prepare recommendations for
improvements to the bridge, or if necessary, replacement.

This Agreement does not obligate (commit to the expenditure of) Federal funds nor
does it commit the parties to complete the project. This agreement documents the intent
of the parties, sets forth the anticipated responsibilities of each in the project and
commits the Requesting Agency to provide funding. The parties understand that any
final decision as to design and construction will be made by the City, CFLHD, Caltrans,
and the Federal Highway Administration California Division Office after completion of
the investigation, and any environmental analysis required under the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).
Any decision to proceed with the design and construction of the project will depend on
the availability of funding at the time of obligation and other factors, such as issues
raised during the environmental process, a natural disaster that changes the need for the
project and a change in Congressional authorization.

Estimated Costs:

Estimated Cost: $85,000.

The Requesting Agency is not required to reimburse the Servicing Agency for any
costs incurred by the Servicing Agency prior to the date of this Agreement.

1| Page
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VIII.

Statement of Work
for Agreement
DTFH68-16-E-00002
September 1, 2015

Period of Performance: All work associated with this agreement will be completed
no later than September 30, 2016.

Technical Representative:

CFLHD Point of Contact for this Agreement is Mr. James Herlyck, Project
Manager, who can be contacted at james.herlyck@dot.gov or (720) 963-3698.

The City Point of Contact for this Agreement is Mr. Randy L. Johnsen, Interim City
Manager, who can be contacted at citymanager@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us or (530) 235-
4822 x 103.

Roles and Responsibilities

A. FHWA, Central Federal Lands Highway Division will:

1) Perform an investigation of the bridge site;

2) Prepare recommendations for improvements to the existing structure,
or if necessary, replacement of the bridge; and

3) Manage the overall effort on this agreement regarding scope, schedule
and budget in coordination with the City

B. The City will:

1) Provide relevant documents and information regarding this project to
CFLHD,

2) Accompany CFLHD staff during site visits;

3) Perform coordination with the railroad,

4) Review and concur on all documents prepared by CFLHD; and

5) Provide funding as referenced in this document.

Financial Administration:

A. Total Agreement Amount: Not to exceed $85,000.
Funding Citations: 23 U.8.C. 308,
B. Reimbursable Payment:

The Servicing Agency will bill the Requesting Agency on a monthly basis. The
Servicing Agency is limited to recovery of the actual costs incurred, as reflected in
the invoice provided by the Servicing Agency.

The Servicing Agency shall not incur costs which exceeds the maximum cost stated
in this Agreement without authorization by the Requesting Agency in the form of

2{Page
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Statement of Work
for Agreement
DTFH68-16-E-00002
September 1, 2015

written modification to this agreement.

Upon receipt of the invoice of costs incurred and authorized, the Requesting
Agency will issue payment via one of the methods listed below.

C. Method of Billing:

The Servicing Agency shall bill the Requesting Agency, in accordance with the
payment terms and schedule as agreed upon in the Agreement.

The Servicing Agency requests that these payments be made through the US
Treasury's website https:/pay.gov. Pay.gov can be, used to make secure electronic
payments to any Federal Government Agencies via credit card or direct debit.
Payment shall be submitted referencing the FHWA/CFLHD-ID

Agreement Number: DTFH68-16-E-00002

Option 1 (Preferred Method)

e  Plastic card or Automatic Clearing House Payment (ACH Direct Debit)

o (o to Treasury’s website — https.//pay.gov

® Search for Agency Name (Transportation Department)

° Select the appropriate Transportation Agency (Federal Highway
Administration)

¢  Follow the form instructions to make your payment. Note, if making an ACH
payment from your bank account, please select ACH Direct Debit as the payment

type.

Option 2
e  Mail check payment to the following address for Paper Check Conversion
(PCC) processing:

Make Check Pavable To;
DOT FHWA

Mailing Address:

Enterprise Service Center
Federal Aviation Administration
ATTN: AMZ-340, Mark Richardson
6500 S§. MacArthur Blvd., HDQ Rm 285
Oklahoma City, OK 73169

¢  Notice to customers making payment by check:
o Please notify Regina Monroe at 720-963-3460 or regina.monroe@dot.gov if

mailing a check.

I|Page
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Statement of Work
for Agreement
DTFH68-16-E-00002
September 1, 2015

o When you provide a check as payment you authorize us either to use
information from your check to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your
account or to process the payment as a check transaction.

o  When we use information from your check to make an electronic fund
transfer, funds may be withdrawn from your account as soon as the same day we
receive your payment and you will not receive your check back from your financial

mnstitution.

Privacy Act- A Privacy Act Statement required by 5 U.S.C. § 552a(e)(3) stating
our authority for soliciting and collecting the information from your check, and
explaining the purposes and routine uses which will be made of your check
information, is available 1Torn our internet site at (PCCOTC.GOV), or call toll
free; at (1-800-624-137 to obtain a copy by mail. Furnishing the check
information is voluntary, but a decision not to do so may require you o make
payment by some other methed,

IX. Modifications;

Any modifications to the Agreement must be made in writing and agreed to by both
parties. Such modifications are not binding unless they are in writing and signed by
personnel authorized to bind each of the agencies.

X,  Agreement Completion:

When the Requesting Agency has accepted all deliverables, the Servicing Agency will
provide a written project evaluation and final accounting of project costs to the
Requesting Agency contact.

X1, Termination:

This agreement will terminate upon the date specified in Section V or upon 30 calendar
day prior written notification to the other party. If this agreement is terminated by the
Requesting Agency its liability shall extend only to pay for it share of the actual and
reasonable costs of the items/services rendered and the costs of any non-cancelable
obligations incurred in accordance with the terms of this agreement prior to the effective
date of termination. If this agreement is terminated by the Servicing Agency its liability
shall extend only to the release of its work products and related materials to the
Requesting Agency by the effective date of termination.

4l Psge
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City Council Agenda item
Interim City Manager Staff Report
New Business

ltem No: 12.C.
Bate: September 17, 2015
Subject: Consider and discuss letter of response from Dunsmuir Recreation & Parks District

regarding proposed Bent Rail Park project on city owned land south of City of Dunsmuir

At the request of the City, Dunsmuir Recreation & Parks District reviewed the proposal from Linda
Gnessa for a Bent Rail Park on approximately 11 acres of property donated to City years ago and not in
use since that time. The comments and responses of District are included in letter attached to this

report.

Recommendation: Staff does not have a recommendation at this time.
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Post Office Box 636 IJ b RUG 312015
Dunsmuir, CA 96025 o
(530) 235-4740 CITY OF DUNSMUIR

unsmuir Recreation

August 26, 2015

Honorable City Council Members
Randy Johnson, Interim City Manager
5915 Dunsmuir Ave.

Dunsmuir, CA 96025

Dear Randy and Council Members,

As per the City’s request, | have reviewed the Bent Rail Park Project with our District
Engineer, Chuck Schlumpberger. At our recent August 19" Board Meeting, the following

action was moved and approved:

1. Recommend to the City to support the proposed project in Concept Only.

2. Recommend that the following issues be addressed before the project moves
forward:

Ownership/Liability

Access

Funding Resources
Maintenance and Daily Upkeep
e. Planning and Design

oo oT®

Piease Note: the District is not in a financial position to support this project. The District
thanks the City for their continued support.

If you should have any additional questions, please contact the Dunsmuir Recreation &
Parks District, 235-4740.

Respectfully,

T ,»:fi/
Michael G. Rodrig‘e/z;

District Administrator

Attachment
Cc: District File
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Muin Office: Mount Shasta

624 5. M. Skaste Bivd., My, Shasia, CA 96067

Tel: 530-926-2605 Fax: 530-926-892F

COregon: 17744 $#411 Hwy 101 N. Brookings, OR 97415
Tel: 541-412-2901

Website: www.sceshasta com

ryer Lonsuiting Engineers, Inc, 3

Schiumpberger Consulting Engineers, Inc.
Structural/Civil /Environmental/Construction Mgt

SUBJECT: Dunsmuir Frisbee Golf

CLIENT: Dunsmuir Recreation and Parks District
LOCATION: South-end City of Dunsmuir
DATE: May 1, 2015

NOTE:

Afier a site review of the south Dunsmuir City property, between the railroad and CalTrans
interstate property, there are items that should be addressed before the Dunsmuir Recreation
and Parks District takes responsibility for this use. These items include but are not limited to:

Title reports and a surveyor may be needed to locate the property corners and easements.
Zoning should be checked for compliance with the General Plan.

Drainage from the interstate must be checked for ROW and flows.

Brush should be cleared as needed for access and fire protection.

Access should be reviewed for ADA accessibility compliance.

Parking must be provided or designated and approved by City and if on the interstate exit ,
reviewed and approved by CalTrans

Restrooms must be provided if improved for public use.

Easements checked and designated for appropriate use as needed.

e Neighbors input collected for compliance with any CEQA reviews.

® & & & 5 B

L: -

This is not a complete list and more items may be required depending upon the use and
improvements.

If any questions arise concerning the items discussed herein please contact Charles
Schlumpberger at SCE, Inc.
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City Council Agenda Item
Interim City Manager Staff Report
New Business

Item No: 12.D.
Date: September 17, 2015
Subject: Consider and approve first reading of Ordinance repealing current Chapter 8.08 of

Dunsmuir City Code and enacting new Chapter 8.08 creating new regulations for refuse
collection and disposal (solid waste)

At a previous meeting staff was directed to arrange for updating of current refuse collection and
disposal provisions {solid waste) and clarifying imposition of mandatory collection.

Recommendation; Move to read Ordinance No. 550 by number and title only.

Move to pass first reading of Ordinance No. 550, An Ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Dunsmuir repealing Chapter 8.08 of the Dunsmuir City Code and enacting a new
Chapter 8.08 concerning refuse collection and disposal. {Roll call vote)
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DUNSMUIR REPEALING
CHAPTER 8.08 TO TITLE 8 OF THE CITY OF DUNSMUIR MUNICIPAL CODE, AND ENACTING
ANEW CHAPTER 8., CONCERNING REFUSE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL

The City Council of the City of Dunsmuir ordains as follows:

Section 1: Repeal.

Chapter 8.08 of the City of Dunsmuir Municipal Code is hereby repealed.
Section 2: Enactment.

Chapter 8.__ of the City of Dunsmuir Municipal Code is hereby enacted to read as follows:

REFUSE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL

Sections:
8. 010 Finding and purpose.

8. 020  Applicability

8. .030  Contract or permit required.

8. 040  Administration and enforcement.

8._ 050  Garbage department.

8.__.060  Mandatory collection.

§.___.070  Initiating service.

§.__.080  Refuse conlainers required.

8._.090  Interference with, removal of refuse containers prohibited.
8. .100  Throwing or depositing of refuse prohibited.
8. _.110  Leaf burning.

8. 120 Charges.

8. 130  Billing and collection procedures.

8. 140 Liability and collection.

8. .010 Finding and purpose.

The city council finds and declares that the public health, safety, and welfare require the regulation of refuse
collection and disposal within the city. Refuse is defined as all garbage, trash, paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial
waste, demolition, construction waste, and "solid waste," as defined by the Public Resources Code of the State
of California, and also includes any and all waste matter and material which cannot otherwise be defined as
garbage, but which is rejected by the owners thereof as useless. The city council further finds that appropriate

regulation of refuse collection and disposal will prevent indiscriminative dumping of refuse and will ensure that

all citizens of the city are provided with adequate refuse collection services and that refuse is disposed of
appropriately.

8. 020 Applicability.
Every resident of the city who is served, and every piece or parcel of property from which any refuse is

removed, under this chapter, shall be subject (o the terms of this chapler and Hable for the charges made for
such service.
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8. .030 Contract or permit required.

It is unlawful for any person, firm, individual or corporation to collect, transport, or dispose of refuse for
another for money or other consideration without first receiving a contract or permit to do so issued by the city.

As i their discretion may appear to be for the best interests of the city and the residents thereof, the city council
may, on behalf of the city, contract or permit for the performance of any part of the service designated in this
chapter.

8. 040 Administration and enforcement.

Administration of this chapter shall be the duty of the city manager, and all money which becomes due the city
under this chapter shall be paid to the city at city hail. The city council may, from time to time, make, fix and
determine, by resolution, the rules and regulations for the operation and performance of the services deseribed

in this chapter.
8. 050 Garbage department.

The city manager has the authority to delegate his or her duty or part of his or her duty to a garbage department,
which shall be under the supervision of the city manager.

§.__.060 Mandatory collection.

It is mandatory for all persons in possession of a residence within the city to subscribe to, pay for, and receive
city refuse service for that residence. It is also mandatory for all persons who maintain within the city any place
of business or a commercial building to subscribe to, pay for, and receive city refuse service for that place of
business or commercial building,

8.__.070 Initiating service.

Refuse collection service will be initiated in conjunction with water and sewer service. ‘The party initiating
service will contact the City to request service and service will begin,

8.__.080 Refuse containers required,

A. Tn the event containers are not City-provided or contractor-provided, it shall be the duty of every person
scrved under this chapter to provide a watertight receptacle for holding refuse, which receptacle shall
have a tight-fitting cover to prevent flies and rodents, dogs and cats from gaining access to the contents
of such receptacle. Such receptacle shall be provided with handles on the outside thereof, and shall not
exceed thirty-three (33) gallons in size; nor shall the receptacle and contents cxeeed fifty (50) pounds in

weight.

B. Refuse shall be placed in suitable receptacies with the total weight of the receptacle and contents not
weighing more than fifty (50) pounds. Tied plastic bags may also be used as exira containers, but only
for leaves, garden clippings, and other vegetable and mineral materials (specifically excluding any
animal materials or foods with odors which would attract dogs, cats, flies and rodents).

C. Itshall be the duty of every person served to keep their refuse receptacles in a clean and sanitary
condilion.
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D. All receptacles used shall be placed at curb side; or on the property line adjacent to a public street or
alley prior to the normal pickup time for refuse, and shall be removed from curb side by ten (10) p.m. on
the day that said refuse is picked up.

E. It shall be the duty of the occupant of the premises served to keep a clear path from the street to the
refuse receptacle. '

F. Except as required by subsection E of this section, all receptacles used shall be placed behind dwelling if
possible or back from the curb or gutter or edge of street at least twenty (20) feet, or shall be placed
behind a fence or wall or gate, or shall be placed in a permanent box or structure at least five feet inside
of the property line if possible.

G. Commercial, motel, and multiple-dwelling units may, if the property makes doing so practical, provide
dumpster receptacles, of dimensions and in a manner and location that must be approved in advance by

the city and its contractor,
8. .090 Interference with, removal of refuse or refuse containers prohibited.

No unauthorized person shall interfere with any refuse receptacle, acceptable container, or the contents thereof,
or remove such receptacle or acceptable container from its regular place or remove the contents therefrom,

8.__.100 Throwing or depositing of refuse prohibited.

It is unlawful for any person to throw or deposit any refuse, or to cause the same 1o be thrown or deposited,
upon any street, alley, gutter, park or other public place, or to throw or deposit the same in or upon any lot or
yard or to store or keep the same otherwise than in receptacles as required by Section 8. .080. 1tis unlawful
for any person to throw or deposit any refuse in any river, stream, or water tributary. It is unlawful for any
person to store, deposit or keep any refuse where animals, rodents, or insects have access thereto or can feed
upon. Each violation of this section shall be treated and considered and the same shall be a separate and distinct

offense.

8 110 Leaf burning.

A. The city council may, by resolution, establish the conditions and requirements for leaf burning for each
year. This resolution shall contain conditions, requirements and number of pernmissibie days as well ag
other information deemed appropriate by the city couneil.

B. Failure to comply with the established conditions and requirements shall be punishable as an infraction.
The penalties are established as follows:

1. First offense—Warning;
2. Second offense—$50.00;
3. Third and subsequent offenses—$100.00.

8. 120 Chargcs.

The city may, by resolution, fix the rates to be charged for the collection, removal and disposal of refuse. All
rules and regulations governing the collection of water and sewer bills shall be applicable to charges for
services rendered under this chapter.
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The bill for collection, removal and disposal of refuse shall be combined with the bilj for water and sewer
services. No one service charge may be paid separately from any other scrvice charge. Failure to pay any
portion of the bill for collection will result in the discontinuance of all water, sewer, and refuse disposal

services.
8_ 130 Biliing and collection procedures.
All refuse charges shall be payable to the City of Dunsmuir or its authorized agent for billing and collection.

8._ 140 Liability and collection.

Every person receiving services pursuant to this chapter shall be liable to the city for the services rendered. In
addition, it is presumed that the occupant of any premises receiving services is acting for and on behalf of the
owner of the premises and that the services rendered are a benefit to the premises.

The delinquent charges for services rendered to the premises under this chapter may be collected at the option
of the city council in the following manner:

L. By a personal action against the owner of the premises served:
2, By an action for foreclosure of the licn on the premises served.

The city manager shall annually report to the county tax collector the names of persons with delinquent charges,
the amount of delinquent charges and a brief description of the premises to which the garbage service was
rendered. Such list shall show the condition of the delinquency of the subscriber to garbage service as of the last

day of August of each year.

The county tax collector shall indicate on the annual tax statement the amount of such delinquency.

Section 3:  Severability.

If any provision of the chapter codified in this ordinance or the application of any provision of the chapter
codified in the ordinance to any person or circumstance is held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect any other
provision or application of the chapter codified in this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid
provision or application, and to this end, the provision of the chapter codified in this ordinance are expressly

made severable.

Section 4: Adoption.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after 30 days after its passage. The
clerk shall cause this ordinance to be published as required by law,

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _ dayof » 2013, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
, Mayor
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ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM

, City Clerk JOHN SULLIVAN KENNY, City Attorney

4822-1795-1272, v. 1
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RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL SETTING RATES FOR REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICES

WHEREAS, in 2015 the City passed Ordinance No. ___ repealing Chapter 8.08 to Title § of the City of
Dunsmuir Municipal Code and enacting a new Chapter 8., concerning refuse collection and disposal; and

WHEREAS, the old Chapter 8.08 set forth rates by way of ordinance, but the new Chapter 8, permits the City

Couneil fo set rates by way of resolution; and

WHEREAS, the City Council currently wishes to retain the rates from former Section 8.08.170 of the Code.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Dunsmuir as follows:

The City sets refuse collection rates as follows:

A. The rate (#300) for private residences shall be the sum of twenty-three dollars and forty-eight cents

($23.48) per month, for a uniform sixty-five- gallon contractor-provided container coliected atl curb side.
The rate for private residences for a uniform ninety-five-gallon contractor-provided container collected
at curbside (#400) shall be thirty-four doilars and fifty-five cents ($34.55). A further surcharge in the
sum of eleven dollars and seven cents ($11.07) shall be charged for other than curbside pickup (#405).
This shall be for the coliection of refuse of not more than two containers of not more than thirty-three
(33) gallons capacity each. The contents of each container shall not weigh more than fifty (50) pounds.
Additional containers at private residences shall be at the rate of two dollars and sixty cents ($2.60) per
can per month. Additional containers put out on a sporadic basis will be billed at the rate of eighty-five
cents (50.85) per container per pickup.

Each nonresidential establishment shall be as set forth in the schedule incorporated herein.

For the purposes of this resolution, churches, lodges and clubs of a nonprofit nature shall be deemed to
be a residence.

For the purposes of this resolution, a container shall be deemed to be any can, carton, box, bundle or
bale except that such each bundle or bale shall be disposable and shail be sccurely tied, and all
containers shall conform to the standards as prescribed by the city codes.

Rates to be charged to commercial establishments:

One stop/week

Basic service #301 (65 gal) $37.01
Dumpster #307 $128.30
Over 6 cans #329 $8.04 cach

Two stop/wecek

Basic service #308 $45.93
Dumpster #314 $226.75
Over 6 cans #330 $16.10 each
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Three stop/weelk

Basic service #315  $54.00
Dumpster #321 $325.21
Over 6 cans #331 $24.16 cach

Five stop/weel

Basic service #322  $56.24
Dumpster #328 $522.12
Over 6 cans #332 $40.26 cach

The above rates for commercial establishments shall be deemed to be rates for curbside pickup. A further
surcharge shall be charged for other than curbside pickup, at rates o be set by the city council upon application
by individual commercial establishments.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2015, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM

, City Clerk JOHN SULLIVAN KENNY, City Attorney

4839-2811-3448, v. 1
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